1851 - It was reported that Russell Jacque
built a large farm house near the lake on the
north end. The house was later (in 1873)
made in to the three story famous "Jacque-
House", one of the five hotels that existed on
the lake during the steamboat days when
excursions were offered on the lake.

1853 - Due to the Old Bald Hill Road getting
so much traffic, there arose a need for the
East Lake Road. Mr. John Hill caused the
road to be built at a cost of $ 5,000.00 Soon
after its completion, a Tollgate was set up at
the Hemlock end. The story is told that one
day “while "he was downtown, he became
involved in an argument over the toll prices
and fell dead with a heart attack. He never
collected much toll. The road served the
public for many years. Just the north end of
the road is traveled now.

1860 - Mr. George Watson built one of the
first steamboats to ply the waters of the lake.
This became one of the five boats that carried
passengers on the lake from the dock at the
foot of the lake to the hotels.

1860 - The Baptist church, which had been
established on the Curtis Corners about half
way between Hemlock and Honeoye,
disbanded and joined with the Hemlock
church. The Rev. Ira Justin was pastor at that
time.
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1866 - Frank Connor's history tells us that one
day in '66 a large crowd assembled in front of
the Metropolitan Hotel to discuss a Fair.. That
was the beginning of what later became
known as "The Slab City Fair" "The Little
World's Fair" and the just plain Hemlock Fair.
In 1877 a two-day Fair was held and the
Ladies Hall was erected. From then on it
grew into what largely became contests of
horse racing until the early 1900’s.

1876 - The gates were opened at Hemlock
Lake and Hemlock Lake water rushed down
the pipe line toward the city. This was the
beginning of a gravity flow water system which
has supplied the city of Rochester with millions
and millions of gallons up to this very day.
The system always needed improvements and
later on Canadice Lake water was tunneled
into the lake. On file are several accounts of
the growth of this famous water system.

1879 - The three story St. James Hotel was
opened on the east side of the lake. In the
following years it was to accommodate many
passengers from the steamships that were
plying the lake.

1882 - The Beam family built their first mill on
the Canadice outlet. The dam and mill were
just east of the main road. Powered by water
power, the mill served the public for many
years. Later the Beam family went on to build
a mill on the Hemlock outlet in the village of
Hemlock, just west of the main road. The
family also operated a small store near the
Canadice outlet.

1888 - At this time, there were 112 buildings
along the shores of Hemlock lake, 96
cottages, 5 hotels, 5 permanent residents and
6 cabins.

1890 - A while back in our notes, we
mentioned the "hermit" Maloy who came early
to the foot of the lake. Around 1890, there
came another man named Prinny Chesbro.
He had been a sailor and it is said that he
was the only man around who could safely
splice a rope. He located a cabin somewhere
near the half-way house. It is said that he
lived to be 100 years old and came to be
known as "The Hermit of Hemlock Lake".

1895 - The Lehigh-Valley RR. Co. railroad
line was extended to Hemlock village and
Hemlock Lake. Much could be written here
about the Lehigh. With the coming of the
railroad, Hemlock became alive. Quickly
passenger service and the freight service grew
until the middle of the 20th century many
trains were in and out every week. Later on
changing times caused the company to quit
the runs to Hemlock and the rails were torn
up_in_1968. Eugene Spencer was one of the
last station agents. The Iasx_uaise\ngﬂ?in
pulled out of Hemlock in 1937. The "section
gang" with their hand-car provided work for
local men all those years.




